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Braver:

| Accountants & Advisars

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Town Council
Town of North Smithfield, Rhode Isiand

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of North
Smithfield, Rhode island, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively comprise the Town's
basic financial statements as listed in the foregoing table of contents. These basic financial statements are
the responsibility of the Town's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these basic
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the North Smithfield
School Department, which represents 23 percent and 16 percent, respectively, of the assets and revenues of
the governmental activities, 14 percent of the revenues of the business-type activities, 100 percent of the
assets and revenues of the School unrestricted fund and 94 percent of the assets of the agency funds.
Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for the North Smithfield Schoal Department is based
on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we pian
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall basic financial statement

presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the basic financial statements
referred to in the first paragraph present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of North Smithfield, Rhode Island, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity auith
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
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The Management's Discussion and Analysis, Schedule of Funding Progress, and Budgetary
Comparison Schedule on pages 3 through 8 and 48 through 51 are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We and other auditors have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and
express no opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of North Smithfield, Rhode Island’s basic financial statements. The
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Combining and Individual Fund Financial
Statements have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us and the other auditors in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other
auditors, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

Providence, Rhode Ishnd
January 31, 2011



Management's Discussion and Analysis

As management of the Town of North Smithfield, we offer readers of the Town of North
Smithfield's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Town of North Smithfield for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, We encourage readers to consider the
information presented in this narrative in conjunction with additional information that we have provided
herein.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of North
Smithfield's basic financial statements. These basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3} notes to the
financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements themselves. The Town of North Smithfield adopted the provisions of Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Transactions and Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments as of July 1,
2002,

Government-wide financial statements. The two government-wide financial statements are designed
to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town of North Smithfield's finances, in a manner similar
to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the Town of North Smithfield's assets
and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. The Statement of Net Assets
and the Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar
to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

One way to measure the Town's financial health, or financial position is the Town's net assats -
the difference between assets and liabilities. Over time, increases or decreases in the Town's net assets
are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider
other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the condition
of the Town's roads, to assess the overall heaith of the Town.

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Town into two kinds
of activities:

Governmental activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including the
police, fire, general administration, schools, streets, parks, and recreation, Property taxes, and state and
federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The Town’s Water, Sewer, and School Lunch activities are reported
here.



The statement of activities presents information showing how the government's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town of North
Smithfield that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges {business-type activities). The governmental activities of the Town of
North Smithfield include general government, education, public safety, public works, parks and
recreation. The business-type activities of the Town of North Smithfield include the jointly-managed

transfer station operation.

The government-wide financial statements include only the activities of the Town of North
Smithfield.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 9 and 10 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of North
Smithfield, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town of North Smithfield can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term
inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government's near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison
between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town of North Smithfield maintains 20 individual governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance for the General Fund, the School Unrestricted
Fund and Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining 17
governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each
of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of "combining statements” later in this
report.



The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 11 and 12 of this
report.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town of North Smithfield uses enterprise
funds to account for its sewer, water and school lunch operations.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because
the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town of North Smithfield's programs. The
fiduciary funds maintained by the Town of North Smithfield include one private-purpose trust and agency
funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17 and 18 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found beginning on page 19 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, required
supplementary information presents a budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund to
demonstrate compliance with the budget.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds
and other information related to the individual funds are presented immediately following the required
supplementary information.

Government-wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial

position. In the case of the Town of North Smithfield, assets exceeded liabilities by $34,903,002 at the
close of 2010,

Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total

Beginning net assets, as restated $22,856,922 $10,464,273  $33,321,195

Increase 608,984 972,823 1,581,807
Ending net assets 23,456 906 11.437,096 $34,903 002

The foregoing reflects an increase of 2.66% for governmental activities and an increase of 8.30%
for business-type activities, when compared to June 30, 2009 amounts,

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the new Statement of Activities some additional explanation is
given. Of particular interest is the format which is different than a typical Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column
with revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a net (expense)/revenue.
The reason for this kind of format is fo highlight the relative financial burden fo our taxpayers of each of
the Town's functions. It alsc identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it
is self-financing through fees and grants.



Gaovemmentas Business-type Percentage
Activities Activities Total Change
2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2008-10
Current and other assets $ 7,611,516 % 6918326 § 6039658 % 10,480,810 § 13651214 § 17,409,138 27 53%
Cagital Asssets 55,388,661 54,235,594 16,339,476 17,088,090 11,728,137 71,324,684 -0.56%
Total Assats 63,000,177 51,153,920 22,379,174 27,579,900 85,379,351 88,733,820 3.93%
Lang-term debi 38,003,695 36,019,973 8,322,738 10,015,606 46,326,433 46,035,669 -0.63%
Other iabiities 2,139,560 1,668,041 3.5082,163 6,126,571 5731723 7794812 35.90%
Total Liabilities 40,143,255 37,688 014 11,814,901 16,142,267 52,058,156 53,830,281 3.40%
Net Assets
Invested in capial assets 18,357,699 16,529,641 B.016,738 7,073,394 26,374,437 26,603,035 0.87%
Restricted for specific programs 1,779,285 1099716 1,779,285 1,099,716 -38.18%
Restricted for permanent trusts 75,448 7G.157 75,448 70,157 -T.01%
Unrestricted 2.5644,480 2,766,392 2,447 535 4,363,702 5,092,025 7,130,094 40.02%
Total nat assets $ 224856622 § 23,465,906 § 10464273 § 11437096 3 33321195 8 34,903 007 4.75%
Percentage
Change
2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2030 2007-08
Revenues.
Program ravenues -
Charges for services 480,587 568,683 2,428,863 2748098 § 2,909,550 % 3,346,782 15.03%
Operating grants 5,999,931 6,201,599 106,845 118,805 6,106,776 £,320,404 3.50%
Capilal grants 88,136 0 0 88,136 A ~1G06.00%
General revenues - 0 4]
Property taxes 24,447 011 75,484,833 24,447 011 25 484,833 4.25%
Mator vehicle axcise in lieu of tax 2,121,675 1.882872 2,121,675 1882872 -11.26%
Grants 1,477,885 1,504,771 1,477,885 1.504,771 1.82%
Investment eamings 58,715 5,52¢ 34,740 34,740 93,455 40,269 -56.91%
Procesds from ong termn debt 0 ]
Miscefiansous 1,351,052 847,167 275,996 775,418 1,627,048 1,622,585 .27%
Loss on abandoment of water project 0 0 o
Transfer to primary government (36,628) 0 39,628 4] 0
Total revenues 3 36,024,852 3 35485826 5§ 2B46544 § 3716680 § 38871536 § 40,207,516 342%
Expendiures:
General Government 1,383,931 1,241,435 1,383,931 1,241,435 <10.30%
Public serdces 650,727 173,081 650,727 173,091 -73.40%
Financial administration 736,334 692,682 736,324 692,692 -5.93%
Public safety 5,168,221 5,485,785 5,168,221 5,485 785 6.14%
Public works 2,075,869 2,602,662 2,075,965 2.002 662 -3.53%
Schowd lunch fund 484,828 470,988 484,828 470,988 -2 .B5%
Water fund 433,579 414,227 433,579 £14,227 -4 46%
Sewer fund 1,825,618 1,858,652 1,825,618 1,858,652 181%
Education 23,034,338 23,844,410 23,034,338 23,844 410 3.52%
Debt service 1,711,950 1,599,126 1,711,850 1.589,126 -6.58%
Capiial and special appropriations 138,310 415,971 138,310 415,971 200.75%
Oiher axpenditures 662,715 421,870 662,715 421,670 -36.37%
Total expanditures $ 35562495 % 35,876,842 § 2744025 & 2,743,867 § 38,306,520 § 38,820,709 0.82%
Transfors (75,600) 5 75,000
Increase/decrease in net assets 3 87497 3 608984 § 177518 $§ 972823 § 565,016 § 1,581,807 179.96%
Net assels, beqginning of year 22,469 425 22,856,922 10,286,754 10,464,273 32,756,179 33,321,195 1.72%
Net assetfs, end of year 5 228565922 % 23,465,806 5 10,464,273 § 11437096 5 33321195 % 34,903,062 4.75%




All other governmental revenues are reported as general. Itis important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Business-type Activities

In reviewing the departmental net (expense)irevenue, the Water, Sewer and School Lunch
activities generated a net gain of $972,823 which corresponds to the increase in this fund's net assets.

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of North Smithfield uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town of North Smithfield's governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the Town of North Smithfield's financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the
end of the fiscal year.

As of June 30, 2010, the Town of North Smithfield's governmental funds reported combined
ending balances of $4,916,900.

The General Fund and School Unrestricted Fund are the chief operating funds of the Town of
North Smithfield. As of June 30, 2010, the total fund balance of the general fund was $3,048,598 of
which $2,739,358 was unreserved. This unreserved fund balance represents approximately 7.64
percent of total general fund expenditures. Of this total fund balance, $309,240 was designated or
restricted.

As of June 30, 2010, the fund balance of the School Unrestricted Fund was $698,429 of which $0
was unreserved and undesignated, and $504,641 was reserved for encumbrances & $193,788 was
reserved for other expenditures. The unreserved fund balance of the school department represents 0
percent of the school department's unrestricted expenditures.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Town's budget must rely heavily on the property tax to finance the Town's General Fund
activities. Actual revenues were $344,918 lower then budgeted revenues for the fiscal year. Property
taxes were $202,978 or .80% lower than budgeted. Expenditures were below appropriations in total by
$275,094.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At the end of June 30, 2010, the Town had $54.2 million invested in governmental-activity capital
assels (cost basis and net of depreciation) including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities,
and general sundry assets.
Debt

At year-end, the Town's General Fund had $34.46 million in outstanding bond principal and $15.9

miflion of bonded interest. The business-type funds had $9.71 million of bonded principal with $1.86
million of interest.



Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The budget for fiscal year 2010-2011 is $33,075,384 a decrease of $1,117,684. Education, at
$20,618,255 is a decrease of $472,835 of which, the town appropriation was reduced by $317,579 &
state aid was reduced by $155,256. The municipal budget therefore represents spending of
$12,457,129.

For the fiscal year 2009-2010, the tax rate was broken down into three tiers residential,
commercial and personnel property, with rates of $13.71, $17.34 and $41.00, respectively. The
breakdown consists of 28.95% for municipal and 71.05% for education. For the fiscal year 2010-2011,
the tax rate was broken down into three fiers residential, commercial and personnel property, with rates
of $15.32, $17.65 and $43.00, respectively. The breakdown consists of 28.99% for municipal and
71.01% for education.

Contacting the Town's Financial Management

These financial statements are designed to provide all interested stakeholders with a general
overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact Finance Director, Town
Hall, 1 Main Street, Slatersville, Rhode Island 02876.

Brian M. Silvia
Finance Director



Statemnent of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivabile, net
Assessments recelvable (current)
Other recaivabies

Due from federal and state governments

inlernal balances
Total Current Assets

Nonctrrent

Capital assets {non-depreciatle)

Capital assets {net of depreciation)

Assessments receivable (noncurrent)
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabifities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Claims payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabifities:
Deferred revenue
Long-term liabilities (nef)
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for specific programs

Restricted for permanent frusts:
Expendable

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Governmental Business-iype
Activities Aglivities Total

$ 5,353821 & 3343017 $ 8695838
983,961 154,565 1,138,526
539,853 539,853
121,888 121,858
756,104 954,425 1,710,520

(297 518) 297 518
5,818,326 5,289,378 12,207,704
7,953,096 54,567 8,007 663
46 282,498 17.034,523 63,317,021
5,201,432 5,201,432
54 235 584 22,290 522 76,525,118
61,153,920 27 8792800 88,733,820
753,678 251,087 1,004,743
256,337 122,829 379,266
522,964 522 964
8,547 12,448 20,995
85,000 85,000
1,758,357 808,575 2,567,932
3,385,881 1,195,019 4,580,800
41,517 5,740,665 5,782,182
34 260616 §,207,121 43 467 737
37,688,014 16,142 805 53,830,819
19,526 841 7,073,394 26,603,035
1,008,718 1,009,715
70157 70,157
2,766,392 4,363,701 7,130,093
$ 23,465 906 $ 11,437,005 & 34,903 001

See Notes to Financial Statements

g



Statement of Activities
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Program Revenues

Net {Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

See Notes to Financiat Statements

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Gavernmental Business-type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Governmental activities
General government 5 1,241435 5 413464 $ 8,178 3 (819,793) b (819,793}
Financial admiristration 892,692 (692,692) (692,692)
Public safety 5,485,785 185,219 4,295 {5.296,271) (5,296,271
Public works 2,002,662 (2,002,662} {2,002 662)
Public services 173,091 19,273 {153,818) {163,818}
Education 23,844,410 6,169,853 (17,674,557) (17.674,557)
Other sxpenses 421,670 {421.870) {421,670}
Interest on long term dabt 1,599,126 {1,599, 126) {1,599,126)
Capital and special appropriations 415,971 (415,971) (415,971)
Total governmental activities 35,876,842 598,683 6,201,599 (29,076,560 {29,076 560
Business-type activity:
Schoot lunch fund 5 470,988 $ 295143 $ 118,805 $ (5704 $ (57 040)
Wader fund 414,227 454,380 40,153 40,153
Sewer fund 1,858,653 1,988,576 139,923 139,923
Total business type activity 2,743,868 2,748,099 118,805 123,036 123,036
Totais $ 38 620,710 $ 3,346,782 $ 6320404 (29,076,560) 123,036 (28,953 524)
General revenues:
Property taxes 25,484,833 25,484,833
Motor vehicle excise in fieu of tax 1,882,872 1,882,872
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 1,504,771 1,504,771
Investment earnings 5529 34,740 40,269
Miscellanecus 847167 775,418 1,622,585
Transfers (39,628) 39,628
Total general revenues 29,685 544 849 786 30,535 330
Change in net Assets 608,984 972822 1,581 806
Net Assets - beginning 22,856,922 10,464,273 33,321,185
Net Assets - ending $ 23 465 806 $ 11,437,095 3 34,903,001

10



Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2019

ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounis recelvabile, net
Due from federal and state governments
Cther raceivables
Due from cther funds
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Due to other funds

Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES:
Reserved for:
Property taxes to be appropriated in
subsequent year
Encumbrances
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Cther expendituras
Undesignated, reported in:
General fund
Special revenus funds
Capital project fund
Permanent trust funds
TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Amounts reportad for governmental activities in the statement of net assets differ because:

Schoot Other Total
General Unrestricted Capital Governmentai Governmenta!

Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
3 3,570,853 $ 853220 g 547,376 § 3s2z272 g 5,353,821
983 661 983,961
145,812 518292 756,104
36,152 91.808 121,958
145,628 584 518 2410603 167,231 1,138,380
$ 4730 694 3 1,583,550 $ 788 379 5 1251601 5 8 354 224
$ 234817 § 434835 $ 45 $ 84,079 $ 753,675
146,696 371,308 4,560 522,964
623,732 79,178 82,849 656,139 1.435 898
576,751 48,035 724,786
1,682,098 885,121 82,894 787,213 3.437 324
309,240 309,240
504,641 504,641
451,954 193,788 B45.742
2,287 404 2,287,404
393.487 383,457
705,485 764 706,248
70,157 70,157
3,048,598 698,429 705,485 464 3588 4,916 900

$ 4.730,684 3 1,583,550 H 788,374 3 1.2518601
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not

financial resources and therefore are not reported in ihe funds 54,235,594

Long-term lizbilities are not due and payabie in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds

Deferred revenues (net of an allowance for uncoliectibles)
are recorded in the funds, but are not deferred under
the measurement focus employed in the Statement of

Net Assets

Accrued interest on long-term fiabilities

have been included in the governmental activities

in the Statemant of Net Assets

Nel Assets of governmental activities

See Notes fo Financial Statements

(36,104,973}

B74,722

(256,337}

b 23465906

i1



Statement of Revenues, Other financing sources
Expenditures, Other financing uses and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Far the year ended June 30, 2010

School Cther Total
Ganeral Urrestricted Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
General property taxes $ 25,365,197 $ 25365197
Motor vehicle excise in lisu of tax 1,882,872 1,882 872
Licenses, fines and fees 508 583 598 683
Interast and investment income 4 368 % 878 3 282 5,528
intergovernmenial 1,504 7 $ 4,758,149 1,443,450 7.706,370
Other revenues §2.235 64,340 3,608 558,807 708,991
Tatal revenues 28,438,127 4,822 489 4,487 2,002 532 36,267,642
Expenditures
Current:
General government 1,134,148 30,237 1,134,386
Financial agministration 692602 682,692
Public safety 5,065,622 5,065,622
Public works 1,631,838 1,831,839
FPublic services 122,354 122,354
Education 21,333,471 1,344,180 22,677 851
Other expenditures 328,885 104 92,677 421,670
Debf Service:
Principat, interest and other costs 3,902,753 3.902753
Capital:
Capital and special appropriations 423,858 214,858 412 654 1,051,470
Total expenditures 12,725,944 21,757 429 245189 1,971,865 36,700,437
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures before other financing sources (uses) 16,712,183 {16,934 9401 {240,712} 30,674 {432 705}
Cther financing sources/uses
Transfers in 291,000 17,103,498 101,00C 17,495,998
Transfers out (16,986,400) (39,528) {508,598} {17,535 626)
Net other sources/uses (15,655,400) 17,064,370 {408,568) (39,628}
Net change in fund batance 16,783 129,430 {240,712) (377.824) (472.423)
Fund balance - beginning of the year 3,031,815 568,999 948,197 842 312 5,389,323
Fund balance - end of the year 3 3,048,598 3 598 428 % 705,485 § 464388 3 4,818 900

See Notes io Financial Staternents
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds (B-2) to the Statement of Activities (A-2)

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds {B-2)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the siatement of activities the cost of those

assets is ailocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount
by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the

current period

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial
resources to governmental funds, white the repayment
of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net assets,

This amount is the net effect of these differences,

Revenues in the statement of activities for sale of easement is
amortized over the life of the easement but reported in full

in the governmental funds

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported

as revenues in governmental funds

Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported as expenditures in governmental funds

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

in the Statement of Activities {A-2)

See Notes to Financial Statements

§ (472423

(1,153,067)

1,808,722

138,176

119,636

77,940

$ 508,984
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IQWN QF NORTH SMITHFIELD

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Currant assets;
Cash and cash equivaients
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governmental units
Assessments receivable (current)

Total current assets

Capital assets {net}

Other assets;
Assessments receivable (noncurrent)
Tetal other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Current ligbilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

DCeferred revenue

Due fo other funds

Current portion of long term debt

Total current ffabiiities

Non-current labilities:
Deferred revenue
Long term debt

Total long-term debt

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in capifal assets, net of related debt

Unrastricted (deficify

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Busingss-type Aclivities
Entarprise Funds

Water Sewer School Lunch

Fund Fund Fund Total
§ 101,881 § 3,241,028 § 334307
59,778 84,787 154 588
42,921 255,650 298,571
G44 670 9.755 954,428
539,853 533 853
204,690 5,075,986 8,755 5,280,431
2683 966 14,397,221 7,903 17,089,090
5,201,432 5,201,432
5,201,432 5,201,432
2,888 656 24 674,639 17 658 27 580 953
2,684 241,145 7.238 251,067
53,767 87,598 1,484 122,929
12,448 12,448
1,063 1.053
102,720 706,705 808,425
188,171 1,026,988 9,755 1,195,922
. 5,740,685 5,740,665
1,853 529 7,353,742 5,207,271
1,853 529 13,084,407 14,847 936
2,012,700 14121403 9,755 16,143,858
727,717 8,337,774 7,903 7.073,394
148,235 4,215,462 4,383,711
3 B750986 5 10,653,238 3 7,903 $ 11,437 095

See Notes io Financial Statemenis
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Operating Revenues:
User fees and assessments
Intergovernmental
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Personnel services
Maintenance and servicing
Operating supplies
Fixed and general charges
Depreciation
Total operating Expenses

Income (loss) from aperations
Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest and miscellaneous income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Transfer in
Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of the year

Net assets - end of the year

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Watar Sewer Schoot Lunch

Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 454,280 $ 1,998,576 $ 2,452,958
$ 118805 118,805
295,143 295,143
454 380 1,098,576 413,948 2 886,904
25,508 161,565 205 202 382,275
184 333 54,926 238,259
72 14 187 262,786 277.045
28,278 803,281 829,558
75,140 676,231 3,000 754 371
311,331 1,700,190 470,088 2,482 509
143,649 298 388 (57,040 384,395
586,940 223,248 810,158
{102,896} (158,463) {261,358)
484 044 654,755 - 548,799
39,628 39,628
627,093 363,141 (17.412) 972,822
248,863 10,190,085 25,315 10,464,273
3 875,958 $ 10,553,236 b 7,803 $ 11,437 085

See Notes To Financial Stalements
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Statement of Cash Flows
Propriefary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities
Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Schoo! Lunch
Fung Fund Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash regeived from customers $ 68,156 3 1,848 887 5 285,143 § 2213188
intergovernmentat 143,859 143,859
Cash paid to employees {25,508) {151,565) (205.202) (382,275)
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services {210,177) {1,141,741) (273,528) {1,625,446)
Net cash provided (used )by operating activities {167,529) 556 581 (38,628) 345,424
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Change in inter-fund lcans {107 484) {107 494}
intergovernmental (8986,360) 39,628 {858,732}
Miscellaneous income 586,260 207,128 793,388
Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 478,766 (689,232} 38,628 (170.838)
Cash flows from capital-related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction of capital asseis (1,503,985) (1,503,085)
issuance of debt 2,377,631 2377.631
Principal paid on bonds and loans (1G7,843) {578,730) (684.673)
Interest paid on bonds and loans {102 896) {158,483) {261.359)
Net cash used for capital-related tinancing activities {210,839) 138,453 (72.388)
Cash flows from investing acfivities:
Interest and dividends on investmenis 679 16,000 16,769
Net cash provided by investing activities 679 16,000 16,768
Net increase in cash 101,077 21,892 122,969
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 914 3,219,134 3,220,048
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 3 101,991 $ 3,241,028 $ 3,343,017
Reconciliation of net income to nef cash provided by operating activities;
income (ioss) from operations 3 143,049 $ 298,386 5 (57,0640) § 384395
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net
cash provided by {used for) operating activities:
Depraciation and amertization 75,140 676,231 3,000 754,371
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 19,069 (30,391} (11,322)
Decrease {increase) in due from other funds 86,118 24,778 110,888
Decrease in assessments receivable (3,424 240) (3,424 240}
increase in due from other governmentatl units 375 375
Increase (decresse) in deferred revenue (405,293} 3,305,942 2.900,649
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses 78 {481,965) (2,014} {483,601}
increase (decrease) in accounts payable 428 126,489 {8,728} 118,199
Total adjustments {310,578} 258,185 17,412 {34,971}
Nef cash provided (used} by operating activities $ {16752%) & 556,581 3 (39628) & 3485424

See Notes to Financial Statements
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TOQWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD

Statement of Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2010

ASSETS
Cash
Other receivable

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

Held in Trust for
private purposes

Private Purpose

Trust
Buxton Family Agency
Association Funds
3 790 3 242 567
12,511
790 255,078
- 3 255078
$ 790 -

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Private Purpose

Trust
Buxton Family
Association

ADDITIONS:
Investment income $ 1
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1
Net ASSETS - BEGINING 789
Net ASSETS - ENDING 3 790

See Notes to Financial Statements

18



TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Town of North Smithfield, Rhode Isiand was incorporated under the provisions of Chapter 728 of
the Public Laws of Rhode Island.

The Town operates under a Town Council-Administrator form of government and provides the
following services as authorized by its charter: public safety (police and fire), highway and streets, sanitation,
health and social services, culture-recreation, education, public improvements, planning, zoning and
inspection, and general administrative services.

The Town complies with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) includes all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
pronouncements. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the
extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their
business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The Town has elected not to
follow subsequent private-sector guidance. The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant
accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this note.

As a general rule the effect of Inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Reporting Entity

in evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the reporting
entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 39. Under GASB Statement No. 39,
the financial reporting entity includes both the primary government and all of its component units. The
discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the combined financial statements to
emphasize it is legally separate from the Town. Component units are legally separate entities that meet any
one of the following three fests:

Test 1 - The primary government appoints the voting majority of the board of the potential component
unit and:

* s able to impose its will on the potential component unit and/or

* is in a relationship of financial benefit or burden with the potential
compenent unit;

Test 2 - The potential component unit is fiscally dependent upon the primary government; or

Test 3 - The financial statements would be misteading if data from the potential component unit were
not included,

(CONTINUED)




TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Reporting Entity (Continued)
The following entities were considered for classification as component units for fiscal year 2010:

North Smithfield School Department
= North Smithfield Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service

Although the North Smithfield School Department met certain criteria of the tests listed above, it is not
deemed to have separate legal status apart from the Town. As a result, the financial data of the North
Smithfield School Department has been included as a major special revenue fund within the Town’s financial
statements.

The North Smithfield Volunteer Fire and Rescue Service did not meet the above three tests and was
determined not to be a component unit of the Town.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

v The Town has implemented GASB Statement No. 51 — Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Intangible Assets and GASB Statement No. 53 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Derivative Instruments, effective for the Town's fiscal year ending June 30, 2010. The
implementation of these pronouncements did not have an impact on the Town's financial
statements,

The Town will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements in future years:

v GASB Statement No. 58 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Chapter 9 Bankruptcies,
effective for the Town’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2011.

v GASB Statement No. 54 — Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions,
effective for the Town'’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2011

v" GASB Statement No. 59 — Financial Instruments Omnibus, effective for the Town's fiscal year
ending June 30, 2011.

The impact of these pronouncements on the Town’s financial statements has not been determined.

(CONTINUED)




TQWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds., The
statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally
are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds each of which is considered
to be separate accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing
accounts which constitute its assets, fiabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditure/expenses. Funds are
organized into three major categories: governmental, proprietary and fiduciary. An emphasis is placed on
major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary
operating fund of the Town or meets the following criteria:

{a} Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmentai or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category
or fype, and
(b) Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental
fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for alt governmental
and enterprise funds combined.
The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:
Governmental Funds
General Fund
The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Town and is always classified as a major fund.
It is used to account for all activities except those legally or administratively required to be accounted for in
other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are
legally or administratively restricted to expenditures for certain purposes.

Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction
of specific capital projects or items.

(CONTINUED)
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TQWN OF NORTH SMITHEIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Permanent Funds

The Permanent Funds account for assets held by the Town pursuant to trust agreements. The
principal portion of this fund type must remain intact, but the earnings may be used to achieve the objectives
of the fund.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These
activities are financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net
income measurement similar to the private sector. Operating revenues of the Proprietary Funds consist of
customer/taxpayer charges for uses and services and certain other miscellaneous revenue. The sewer fund,
water fund and school lunch funds of the Town are the three proprietary funds.

Fiduciary Funds {Not included in government wide statements)

Agency Funds

Agency funds account for assets heid by the Town in a purely custodial capacity. The reporting entity
includes eight agency funds. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities), they do
not involve the measurement of results of operations. The agency funds are as follows:

- Harkness Road Escrow

- Subdivision bond account

- Police uniforms

- Junior/Senior High School Fund
- Middle School Fund

- Halliwell School Fund

- Athletic account

- Elementary School Fund

Private-purpose Trust Funds

Private-purpose trust funds are used to account for resources legally held in trust for use by parties
cutside of the Town, and can not be used at the Town's discretion or to support the Town's general
operations. The private purpose trust fund of North Smithfield is the Buxton Family Association.

Major and Non-Major Funds

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Fund Brief Description

Major:

General: See above for description
Capital Projects: Capital projects fund
Proprietary. See above for description
Special Revenue: See above for description
School Unrestricted: School operating funds

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Major and Non-Major Funds (Continued)
Non-Major:

Special Revenue Funds:
School  restricted, Governors  Justice Commission,
Substance Abuse Donations, Substance Abuse Prevention
Council, Parks & Recreation, Miscellaneous Revenue,
Project D AR E., Business Revolving Loan, CDBG, Police
Forfeiture, Miscellaneous Police & Fire, EMS, Debt Reserve

Capital Project Funds: School renovations

Permanent Funds: Police Uniforms, Record Retention, Harkness Road,
Subdivision Bond, Michael F.Lovett Scholarship, J. Harold
Monroe, Jr. Scholarship.

Measurement Focus

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities both governmental
and business-like activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in
item b. below.

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources” measurement focus or the
"economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate:

(a) All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources” measurement focus. Only
current financial assets and liabifities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their
operating statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources
during a given period. These funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable
financial resources at the end of the period. The Town considers property taxes as available
if they are collected within 60 days after year end.

(b} The proprietary funds utilize "economic resources” measurement focus. The accounting
chjectives of this measurement focus are the determination of net income, financial position
and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or non-current) associated with their
activities are reported. Fund equity is classified as net assets.

(c) Agency funds are not involved in the measurement of results of operations, therefore,
measurement focus is not applicable to them.

Basis of Accounting

fn the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities both governmental and
business-like activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the fiability is incurred or
economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions are recognized when the exchange takes place.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Basis of Accounting (continued)

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and
available”. Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures {including
capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for general obiigation bond
principal and interest which are reported when due.

Al proprietary funds, agency funds, and private purpose trust funds utifize the accrual basis of
accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used.

Amounts reported as program revenues include charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided and operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the proprietary fund's
principal operation. The principal operating revenues of the sewer enterprise fund are charges for sewer use
and assessments. The principal operating revenues of the water enterprise fund are water user fees.
Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the costs of providing the services, including
administration and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenue and expense items not meeting these
criteria are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity
Cash

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost. Cash equivalents are all highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. Substantially, all of the Town's
cash and cash equivalents are held in public deposit institutions, except for $1,400 in unsecured petty
cash. The State of Rhode Island requires that certain uninsured deposits be collateralized. Section
35-10.1-7 of the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, dealing with the collateralization of public
deposits, requires that all time deposits with maturities of greater than 60 days and ali deposits in
institutions that do not meet the minimum capital requirements of its Federal regulator must be
colfateralized.

Investments

The Town invests in various types of investments, which are stated at fair value. There are
no investments reported at amortized cost. For purposes of the statements of cash flows, all highly
fiquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased (e.g., short-term
certificates of deposit) are considered to be cash equivalents, State statues authorize the Town to
invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate bonds and repurchase
agreements.

(CONTINUED)
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TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assefts, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Accounts Receivable

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end
and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based tpen historical
trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. The allowance for uncollectible accounts
receivable amounted to $100,000 at June 30, 2010. Major receivable balances for the governmental
activities include property taxes. Business-type activities report service fees as its major receivables,

in the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue
accruals such as property taxes and grants and other similar intergovernmental revenues since they
are usually both measurable and available. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available
are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, bui not deferred in
the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Proprietary fund
materiat receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for
uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical frends and the periodic aging of accounts
receivable.

Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payables

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for
goods provided or services rendered. These receivables and payables are classified as "due from other
funds" ar "due to other funds” on the balance sheet.

Advances to Other Funds

Noncurrent portions of long-term interfund loan receivables are reported as advances and are
offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that they do not constitute
expendable available resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation.

Accounts Payabie

Payable balances consist primarily of payables to vendors.

Property Taxes

Property tax revenues are recorded in accordance with the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The Town's property tax is levied each June 30, for its next fiscal year on the assessed
values listed as of the prior December 31, for all real property, tangible property, and motor vehicles
focated in the Town. Taxes are payable quarterly on August 15, October 15, January 15, and Aprit 15.

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, is empioyed in certain governmental funds. Open encumbrances are reported as
reservations of fund balances. Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities under
generally accepted accounting principles. (See note 2 for budgetary reporting of encumbrances).

(CONTINUED)




TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on
whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and
whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements,

Government-Wide Statemants

In the government-wide financial statements, long-lived assets are accounted for as capital assets. All
capital assets are valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for
donated fixed assets, which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Estimated
historical cost was used to value the majority of the assets acquired prior to June 30, 1993,

Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of $7,500 or more and
an estimated useful life in excess of two years.

infrastructure assets, (such as sidewalks, curbs, drainage systems, and road improvements) have
been capitalized and reported within the financial statements.

Depreciation of ail exhaustible capital assets is recorded, as an allocated expense in the Statement of
Activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Assets, Depraciation is provided
over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated
useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and land improvements 20-50 years
Motor vehicles 5 - 20 years
Equipment and Heavy machinery 5-20 years
Office equipment 5-10 years
Sewer mains and laterals 30 - 85 years
Water lines and projects 30 - 85 years
Other assets 5-10 years
Infrastructure 25 - 40 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financia! statements, capital assets used in governmentat fund operations are accounted
for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary
fund operations are accounted for in the same manner as in the government-wide statements.
Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenue represents funds received in advance of being owed or receivables which will be

collected and included in revenues of future fiscal years. In the General Fund, deferred revenues relate to
property tax receivables which are assessed on December 31.

(CONTINUED)




TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
Assets, Liabilities, and Fund Equity (Continued)

Interfund Transactions

Interfund activity within and among the funds of the Town have been classified and reporied
as follows:

- Reciprocal interfund activities:

" Interfund loans are reported as interfund receivables in the lending fund and
interfund payabies in borrower funds.

. Interfund services are reported as revenues in the seller fund and as
expenditures or expenses in the purchasing fund.

- Non-reciprocal interfund activities:

= Interfund transfers are reported in governmental funds as other financing
uses in the funds making transfers and as other financing sources in the
funds receiving transfers. In proprietary funds, transfers are reporied after
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

. Interfund reimbursements are repayments from the fund responsible for
particular expenditures or expenses to other funds that initially paid for them.
Reimbursements are not displayed separately within the financial statements.

interfund transfers from the general fund totaled $16.986,400 for the year, representing
$16,885,400 for the general fund's transfer to the school department and $101,000 to the debt reserve
fund. Interfund transfers to the general fund was $291,000 from the EMS fund.

Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

(a) Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets
including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes. or
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets.

{CONTINUED)




LOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Equity Classifications (Continued)

Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

{b) Restricted net assets - Consists of net assets with constraints placed on the
use either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional

pravisions or enabling legisiation.

{c) Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of
"restricted” or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt”.

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as
reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements,

Compensated Absences

Unused vacation leave is paid upon an employee's termination. Sick leave not taken is paid
to employees upon termination. The amount recorded is based on union contracts at the current rate
of pay. For governmental activities, the general fund is used to record this liability if it is expected to
be liquidated with expendable available resources. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave of
the Proprietary Fund is recorded as an expense and liability in that fund as the benefits accrue to

employees.

Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund balance sheet includes reconciliation between fund balance -~ total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities are not due and payabie in the
current period and therefore are not reported in the funds,” The details of this $36,104,973 difference are as

follows:

Bonds pavable
Compensated Absences
Net OPER liahility
Claims payable

Capital leases payable

33,760,000
833,215
722,770

85,000
703,988

Total $

36,104,973

(CONTINUED)
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JUNE 30, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Explanation of Certain Differences between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance and the Government-wide Statement of Activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes
reconcitiation between nef changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net assets of
governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.” The details of this §(1,153,067) difference are as follows:

Capital outlays (net of disposals), .. ..o $635,400
Depreciation 8XDENSE... v eee e {1,788,5686)
Net adjustment........coii e $(1.153,067)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of iong-term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
assets.” The details of this $1,898,722 difference are as follows:

Increase in other long term liabilities ........................ (326,965)
Principal repayments ... 2.225.687
Net adjustment. ... $ 1898722

Another element of that reconciliation states that, “Revenues in the statement of activities that do not
provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues in governmental funds.” The details of this
$119,636 difference are as follows:

Deferred revenue - beginning ... $(555,086)
Deferred revenue —ending ..o oo 674 722
Net difference ..o 3 119636

BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE
Budgetary Data

The Town Charter provides that the Administrator, with the Town Budget Committee, must submit a
proposed operating budget, capital budget and a budget message containing an explanation of proposed
financtal policies and the important features of the budget pian to the Town Council by the third Monday in
March. The budget must reflect all anticipated revenues and proposed expenditures and the proposed
expenditures cannot exceed anticipated revenues. The budget is presented to the public on the third Monday
in May at a public hearing. After the public hearing, the Town Council may revise the budget, but final
adoption of the budget shall be voted no later than June 30th. The Town Charter requires annual budgets for
the General Fund and Special Revenue - General Schoo! Activities.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the
expenditures of funds, are recorded in order to preserve that portion of the applicable appropriation is
employed in the General Fund Budget. Open encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances,
Encumbrances do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

{CONTINUED)
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2. BUDGETARY AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE {(Continued)

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2010, expenditures exceeded budget at the department level as follows:

Department Excess
TOWN COUNGI ..o e e $34
Board of canvassers. ... 109
Town Clerks office........ccccooveei R 3,687
Street IS .. i e 81,0619
Police departmient ..., 77,562
ANImal Control ... S 2,832

3. RECEIVABLES

Taxes are assessed each December 31, with the exception of new construction, and the levy
thereon may be paid in fuil on or before August 15, or quarterly, on or before August 15, October 15, January
15, and April 15, without penalty, at the taxpayer's option. A 12% annual interest penalty is imposed on all
overdue taxes.

Unpaid property taxes at June 30, 2010, include delinguent installments of the current and prior years.
The Town does not record interest earned on delinquent taxes until payment is received.

Net property taxes levied for the fiscal year 2010 were based on an assessed value of approximately
$1,580,346,079 at December 31, 2008 and amounted to approximately $25,090,079. Total cofiections
through June 30, 2010, on the 2009 tax levy, amounted to approximately $25,072,568, which represents
approximately 98.9% of the net tax levy. Total collections including 60-day receipts (applicable to the 2009 tax
levy) amounted to approximately $25,365,197, which represents approximately 101% of net tax levy.

The Town recognizes property tax revenues in accordance with Section P70, “Property Taxes” of the
Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards on the Fund statements. Unpaid
property taxes $983,961 as of June 30, 2010 are recorded as a receivable, net of an allowance for
uncolectible property taxes of $100,000. Those property taxes receivable, which were not collected within the
60 days immediately following June 30, 2010, are recorded as deferred revenue, net of the allowance of
$100,000 and amounted to $674,722 at June 30, 2010. Property taxes recognized as revenue for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2010 (due to their collection within the 60 days immediately following June 30, 2010)
amounted to $292,629,

The allowance for uncollectible accounts is based on that portion of current and delinquent tax
receivable, which is estimated to be doubtful of collection. This provision does not constitute an abandonment
of ciaim or the cessation of collection effort.

{CONTINUED)
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3. RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Receivables at June 30, 2010 consisted of the following:

Other
Governmental Business-type
General Funds Activities Total

Receivables:

2008 tax year .......coceeecciiveeen, $622,204 622,204

2008 and prior years .............. 461,757 481,757

ACCOUNS .., s $154,565 154,565

Miscellaneous ......cco.cccovvernn, 30,152 $91.806 121,858
Gross recejvables................. 1,114,113 91,806 154,565 1,360,484

Less: allowance for

uncollectibles ... {(100.000) 0 0 {106,000)

Total receivables.................... $1,014.113 $91,806 $154,565 $1.260.484

4. DEPQSITS AND INVESTMENTS
{(a) Deposits
The Town maintains deposits at local financiai institutions. At year end, the carrying amount of such
deposits was $8,938,785, while the bank balance was $9,847,901 of which $1,046,264 was covered by federal
depository insurance. Of the remaining balance, $7,394,381 was collateralized and $1,406,256 was
uncollateralized.

(b) Interest Rate Risk/Concentration of credit risk

The Town has no investments subject to interest rate risk or concentration of credit risk as of June 30,
2010.

{c) Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank faifure, the Town's deposits may not be
returned. The town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.
{d) Investments

The Town has implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Certain Investments are for External Investment Poois,” which requires that investments be
reported at fair value. Fair values are established by quoted market values. Unrealized gains and iosses from

changes in fair value are recognized as invesiment income. As of June 30, 2010 the Town has no
investments.

{CONTINUED)
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INTERFUND BALANCES

Inter-fund receivable and payable are as follows:

Miscellaneous Revenue FUN.. ..o oo
Police Forfelfure FUnG...o..oo oo oot

Due From
Other Funds

Due To
Qther Funds

$ 145,628 $ 623,732
584 518 79178
241.003 82,849

79,178 583,465
3.895
6,310 3,885
10,228
26,698
22,068
20
8,835
2,885
68,983
167,231 650,138
255.650
42,921
1.053
$ 1,436,951 $ 1,436,951
(CONTINUED)
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6. FIXED ASSETS

Activity for governmental activity capital assets is summarized below:

Governmentia!l activity fixed assets

Land (not being depreciated)............... ...
Construction in progress (not depreciated)
Land improvements............... ...
Building and improvements... ............_..

Infrastructure... ... ...,

Machinery and equipment..........._.. ...
Vehicles ... i
Totalcost..................................

Less: accumulated depreciation

Land improvememts.....................o.. .
Building and improvements... ... ....... ...

Infrastructure............

Machinery and equipment....................

Vehicles..............

Total accumulated depreciation ...... . ..

Net fixed assels.......................... ...

Balances Balances

711108 Additions Deductions 68/30/1C
$ 7,941,141 7.841 141
32,080,317 $ 11,855 $ (32,060,317) 11,955
1,379,404 1,881,385 3,260,789
22,462,360 29,944 111 52,408 471
24,411,882 24,411,862
4,705 162 870,834 (10,329) 5,565 766
3,955 628 {170,275) 3,785 353
96,915 874 32,708,385 (32,240,821} 97,383,338
{1,193,881) (154,202) (1,348,083)
{11,400,057) {852,320) {12,252,378)
(22,336,372} {244,159) {22,580 ,531)
(3,318,231} {382,214) 10,329 {3,680,118)
{3,278 672) {155,671} 157,706 {3,276,638)
(41,527,213) (1,788,566) 168,035 (43,147 744)
$ 55,388,661 $ 30,919 819 3 (32,072,886) $ 54235594

{CONTINUED}
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6. FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

Activity for the Proprietary Funds capital assets is summarized below

Balances Balances

77109 Additions Deductions 8/30/10
Construction in progress (not depreciated) $ 3,338,390 $ 1,503,984 $ (4,014,308) % 828,086
Land improvements............................ 29,657 29 857
Building and improvements... .............. .. 2,331,276 2,331,278
Infrastructure......... ... .. 6,817,347 4.014,308 10,831,655
Machinery and equipment............_ . ... . 18,495,801 18,485 601
Vehicles...... ... 49,607 49 607
Totalcost.. .....................ccoo.......... 31,081,878 5,518,292 (4,014,308) 32,565,862

Less: accumulated depreciation

Land improvements.............................. (13,518) {13.518)
Building and improvements..................... (468,693) (46,625 (515.318)
Infrastructure... ... .. ... (4,695,573) {96,837) {4,792 410}
Machinery and equipment................._..... (9,495,016} (610,909) (10,105,925}
Vehicles...... ... {49,604) (49 ,604)
Total accumulated depreciation ......... . (14,722,402) (754,371) {(15,476,773)
Net fixed assets ... $16339476 $ 4,763,921 $ (4,014,308) 3 17,089,088

Depreciation expense was charged to the following functions/programs of the Town:

Governmental activities:

General government.....................ooo $ 65,846
Public safety... ..o 209,900
Public services ... 50,737
PUblic WOPKS ..o 332,137
Education ... 1,129,948

TOtal .o $1,788.566

Business-type activities:

SEWEF ... $ 676,231
WEBLRE e 75,140
School UNCh ..o 3.000

Total ..o § 754371

7. DEFERRED REVENUES

General Fund deferred revenues relate to revenue that is measurable but not available. Generai Fund

deferred revenues are summarized as follows:

Property taxes receivable, net........................ $674,722
OIRET e 2,029
Less: current year 80 day accrual ... (309,240}

Total deferred revenue ... .. .. .. $367,511

(CONTINUED)
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Schedule of long-term debt by purpose is as follows:

General long-term debt

88%
5%
2%
2%
2%
1%

100%

20%
80%

Amount

SChoot BONGS ... $31,840,000
General obligation bonds ... 1,820,000
Capital budget project ... ... 703,088
Compensated absences ... 833,215
OPEB Li@bility ..o 722,770
Claims payable.............ooi e 85,000

TOtal . e $36.104,973

Proprietary funds

Water bonds.......co.ocoii e 3 1,956,249
SeWer DONUS ... 8,059 447

TOtal ... $.10.015.696

100%

Percent

(CONTINUED)
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8. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

At June 30, 2010, the Town's long-term debt outstanding is comprised of the following individual issues:

Maturity Outstanding Outstanding Current
Date of issue Date  Amount of Issue Interest Rate dJune 30, 2008 Additions Retirements June 302010  Portion
Long-term debt
General obligation bonds payable
New glementary school.................... 12/15/96 08/01/09  § 4,015,000 4.25% t0 5.3% $275,000 $275,000
NSES School Bond ..o, 10/15/01 10/15/21 4,000,000 3.00% - 5.00% 2,600,000 200,000 $2,400,000 $200,000
Schootbonds ..o 05/14/08 04/01/29 30,000,000 2.50% - 5.50% 29,800,000 1,040,000 28,760,000 1,055,000
General obligation bonds ... 0701707 Q701127 2,100,000 4.125%-5,50% 2,030,600 110,000 1,920,000 110,000
School general obligation bonds.......... 12/15/08 8130128 700,000 5% 700,000 20,000 680,000 40,000
Sewerbond ... 04/23/80 04/23/10 814,610 5% 44,333 44,333
Total general obligation bonds
payable ... 41629610 35,449 333 1.689.333 33,760,000 1,405,000
Capital leases payable
Capital budget project...................... 08/30/04 08/30/09 1,178,000 1.75% to 3.25% 235,000 235,000
Capital budget project ...................... 11/18/05 11/18/10 445,000 3.55% 142,300 92,047 50,253 50,253
Capital budget project ... 12121007 12121112 745,000 3.85% 607,042 162,051 444 991 171,651
Capitat budget project ... 11/25/08 11/25/13 256,000 3.97% 258,000 47.256 208,744 49,132
Total capital leases payable. 2.624.000 1,240,342 536,354 703,988 271,038
Compensated absences .................. 750,758 82.457 833,215 83,321
Clatms payable........._............. 85,000 85,000 85,000
Net OPEB fiability (Note 11)................ 478,262 244 508 722,770 0
Total long- term
debt. ... $44,253 610 238003605 . $326.065  $2,225.687  $36104.973  $1,844,357

(CONTINUED)
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a.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIOS (Continued)

Bonds outstanding (Continued)

Enterprise Funds

General obligation bonds payable

Water:
Waterbond ...
Waterbond ...
Waterbond ...
Waterbond ...

Sewer

Sewerbond..... .. ...
Sewer General Obligation Bond
Mendon Road Project #1 bond ...
Ciean Waler sewer project #1 loan
Mendon Road Project #2 bond ..
Clean Water Revoiving Fund ...,
Clean Water sewer project #2 loan

Total sewerfund....... ... .. ..

Date of issue

Maturity
Pate

Amount of Issue

12119179
06/11/82
05/16/95
(8/26/99
09/18/97
10/15/01

04/23/80
12/15/08
12/18/90
03/12/92
04407792
10/06/08
03/10/93

12/18/09
05/11/22
05/16/00
08/26/39
09/16/22
10/15/21

04123110
6/30/29

12/18/20
08/01/11
04/G7/20
09/01/29
0%/01/15

$ 150,000
50,000
500,000
790,900
500,000
1,010,000
~3,000.800

1,685,390
1,000,000
303,000
2,900,000
60,000
4,750,000
—4.500,000

15,198,390

$18.199.290

interest Rate

5%

5%

6%

5%

5.6%
3.00% - 5.00%

5%
5%
7.25%
3.6759%
6.625%
unknown
3.11073%

QOutstanding
June 30, 2009

Additions

Outstanding

Current

Retirements June 30, 2010  Portion

$ 8,064 $ 8,064
27,241 1,546 $25 605 $1,623
306,853 20,608 286,245 21,845
716,379 10,160 706,219 10,668
355,555 17,465 338,090 18,584
650,000 50,000 600,000 50,000
2,064,092 107,843 1.956,249 102,720

104,949 104,049
1,000,000 15,000 985,000 45,000
193,940 10,982 182,958 11,593
500,000 194,000 406,000 200,000
37,918 2,179 35,739 2,329
4,750,000 4,750,000 188,033
1,949,370 249620  1.699.750 258750
3.886.177_ 4750000 576,730 8059447  705.705
0,269 _ $4,750.000 $684,573  $10.015,696  $808.425
(CONTINUED)
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)
Bonds Outstanding {Continued)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Town incurred and paid the following interest
expense,

Incurred Paid
BB e $102,896 $102,896
BT e 168,463 158,463
General fund ..o e 1,573,401 1,651,341
Ot $1.834,760 31,812,700

At June 30, 2010, the Town was in compliance with Rhode Island General Law 45-12-2 which places
a 3% cap on the ratio of the Town's maximum aggregate indebtedness to taxable property.

Capital Leases

The Town has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of vehicles and
equipment. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have
been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Asset:
Equipment and vehiCles ... $2,302,214
Less: accumulated depreciation ..., (1,937,377}

LT $ 364,837

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments
as of June 30, 2010 were as follows:

Year Ending June 30

General
Long-term Debt

20T e $307,868
AT e, 254,233
B0 153,163
204 e 57112
Total minimum lease payments . ... 772,377
Less: amount representing interest.................. . 68,389
Present value of minimum lease payments ... .. 3$703,988

(CONTINUED)
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8.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Debt Service Requirements

Annual principal and interest requirements on general obligation bonds and capital leases for the year ending June 30, 2010 are as follows:

Year-ending,
June 30

2020
20212025
2026 - 2030
Thereafter... ...

Total e

General Long-Term Debt

Enterprise Funds

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
$1,676,036 $1,568913 33,244,949 $821,542 $225,981 $1,047 523
1,692,903 1,485,310 3,178,213 842 582 201,718 1,044,301
1,654,630 1,402,054 3,056,684 853,513 180,108 833,621
1,610,419 1,332,979 2,943,398 674 842 160,251 835,183
1,615,000 1,256,158 2,871,158 693,139 141,010 834,149
1,670,000 1,184,011 2,854,011 713,118 121,083 834,181
1,730,000 1,108,253 2,838,253 412,148 105,825 517,973
1,795,000 1,044,447 2,839,447 421,745 95,496 517.241
2,520,000 1,015,253 3,535,253 431,682 82,256 513,938
1,740,000 B54,400 2,594,400 446,293 71,073 517,366
9,785,000 2,991,032 12,776,032 1,830,965 239,404 2,070,369
6,975,000 660 958 7,635,958 1,720,543 128,927 1,850,470
353,484 104,931 458 415
$34.463 988 $15.903,768 350,367,756 $10.015.696 $1,859 044 $11.874,740

(CONTINUED)
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9.

10.

11.

SHORT TERM DEBT

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Town financed certain sewer construction with short term
borrowings through the Rhode Island Ciean Water Finance Agency. The amount outstanding on these
borrowings as of June 30, 2009 total $2,372,369. This amount was presented on the Town's proprietary
funds’ statements of net assets and was repaid during the fiscai year ending June 30, 2010 with funds from
the issuance of sewer bonds.

FUND EQUITY BALANCES
Reserves/Designated Fund Balances
The Town of North Smithfield records several types of reserves. The reserves indicate that a portion

of fund equity is segregated for a specific use. In addition, a portion of the unreserved fund equity is
designated for specific purposes.

School
General Fund Trust Funds Unrestricted Fund

Reserved:
Reserved for property taxes to be appropriated
inasubsequentyear....................... $308.240
Reserved for encumbrances............cco.ovn.. $504,641
Reserved for nonexpendable bequests .......... $ 70,157

Total Reserved................................... 3309240 $ 70,157 3504 641

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
(a) Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island
Plan Description

The Town's defined benefit pension plan, Municipal Employee’s Retirement System of the Staie of
Rhode Isiand (MERS), provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, death and
disability benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. MERS is an agent muitiple-empioyer Public Employee
Retirement System that acts as a common investment agent for participants. The Municipal Employee’s
Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financiai statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the
State of Rhode Island Employee Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street Providence, Rl 02903, or by
accessing their website at www.ersri.org.

Funding Policy
MERS members are required to contribute 7.0% of their annual covered salary. The Town is required
to contribute at an actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 1.42% of annual covered payroll. The

contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended by State
Statute.

{CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(a) Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island {Continued)
Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents muitivear
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress of the Generat Municipal
Employee's Pension Plan with a valuation date of June 30, 2009, which is the most recent report available from the State
who administers this plan.

Funded Status of Plan (Continued)

Actuarial Value of Assets $13,501,632
Actuarial Accrued Liability $11,489.027
Unfunded (excess) actuarial accrued Liability $ (2,012,605)
Funded Ratic 117.5%
Annual Covered Payrol; % 2,856,531
UAAL (excess) as percentage of payroll (70.5)%

Annual Pension Cost

For 2010, the Town's annual pension cost of $17,820 for MERS was equal to the Town's required and actual
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June 30, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry
age normal cost method with frozen initial liability. Significant actuarial assumptions included (&) a net investment return
of 8.25 percent compounded annually, (b) projected salary increases at an annual service related component plus a 3%
inflation component compounded annually, (¢) 3.0 percent per year cost-of-living adjustments, (d) mortality rates based
on the 1894 Uninsured Pensioner Mortality Table and (e) a retirement age of 65 or completion of service requirements, if
later. The actuarial value of MERS assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a three-year period. MERS unfunded actuarial accrued lizbility is being
amontized over the remainder of a closed 30-year period from June 30, 2010.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Perceniage Net
Year Pension Cost aof APC FPensicn
Ending {APCY Contributed Obligation
6/30/08 $18 466 100% $-0-
6/30/09 $34,706 100% 3-0-
6/30/10 $17,820 100% $-0-

(b) Municipal Police Pension Plan
Plan Description

Al fuli-time police members participate in the same Municipal Employee’s Retirement System of the State of
Rhode Island (deseribed above).

Funding Policy
Covered police employees are required fo contribute 5% of their annual covered salary. The Town is required to
contribute at an actuarially determined rate the remaining amounts necessary {0 fund the System; the current rate is

13.2% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may
be amended by State Statute.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFITS PENSION PLANS (Continued)
(b) Municipal Police Pension Plan {(Continued)
Annual Pension Cost

For 2010, the Town's annual pension cost of $163,511 for the Police Pension System was equal to
the Town’s required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the June
30, 2007 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal cost method with frozen initial iiability. Significant
actuarial assumptions included (a) net investment return of 8.25 percent compounded annually, {b) projected
salary increases at an annual service related component plus a 3% inflation component compounded
annually, (¢) mortality rates based on the 1994 Uninsured Pensioner Mortality Table, and {(d) a refirement age
of 60, or completion of service requirements, if later. The actuarial value of MERS' assets was determined
using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a
three-year period. Any MERS unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized using the weighted
average method over a 25 year period.

Funded Status of Plan

The required supplementary information which follows the notes to the financial statements presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Listed below are the details of the funding progress of
the General Municipal Employee’s Pension Plan with a valuation date of June 30, 2009, which is the most
recent report available from the State who administers this plan.

Actuarial Value of Assets $7.928,277
Actuarial Accrued Liability 38,661,456
Unfunded (excess) actuarial accrued Liability $ 733,179
Funded Ratic 91.5%
Annual Covered Payroll $1,154,239
UAAL (excess) as percentage of payroll 83.5%

Three-Year Trend information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension Cost of APC Pension
Ending (APC)Y Contributed Obligation
6/30/08 $226,633 100% $-0-
6/30/09 $167,22% 100% $-0-
8/30/10 $163,511 100% 3-0-
(c) Teacher's Pension Plan

All full-time teachers including superintendents, principals, school nurses and certain other school
officials {"classified employees"} in the North Smithfield Schoo! District participate in the Employees
Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERSRI), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public empicyee
retirement system. In addition to classified employees, the System covers substantially all employees of the
State of Rhode island. The payroll for employees covered by the System for the year ended June 30, 201G,
was $10,664,753; the total payroll for the Town was approximately $16,500,000.

(CONTINUED)




TOWN OF NORTH SMITHEIELD, RHODE ISLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2010

11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
{c) Teacher's Pension Plan (Continued)

The plan issues a stand-alone publicly available financial report that inciudes financial statements and
required supplementary information. A copy of the report can be obtained from the State Employees
Retirement Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Island 02803, or by accessing their website at
WWW. ersr.org.

Plan Description

The ERS was established under section two of chapter 2334 of the Rhode Isiand Public Laws of 195+
and placed under the management of the Retrement Board for the purpose cof providing retirement
allowances for employees of the State of Rhode Island under the provisions of chapters 8 to 10, inclusive, or
title 36, and public school teachers under the provisions of chapters 15 to 17, inclusive, of title 16 of the Rhode
Island General Laws. The plan provides a two tier benefit structure referred to as schedules A and B as
follows:

Schedule A Benefits: Schedule A benefits are available to members who possess 10 years of more of
contributory service on or before July 1, 2005. Schedule A provides unreduced benefits of 1.7% of garnings
for each of the first ten years of service; 1.9% for each of the next ten years of service; 3.0% per year for each
of the next fourteen years; and 2% for the 35" year. Joint and survivor options are available as well as the
Service Retirement Allowance (SRA) Plus option that provides for the payment of a larger benefit before the
attainment of age 62 and a reduced amount thereafter. The reduced amount is equal to the benefit before
age 62, including cost-of-living increases, minus the member's estimated social security benefit payable at
age 62. The maximum benefit is 80% of "final average’ (FAC) earnings after 35 years of service. Final
average earnings are the three highest consecutive years of earned salary excluding overtime, bonuses, or
severance pays. Such benefits are available to members at least age 60 with 10 years of service, or after 28
years at any age. On the third January after retirement, a cost-of-living increase of 3% {compounded
annually) is provided independent of actual changes in the consumer price index. The plan also provides
nonservice-connected disability benefits after five years of service: service-connected disability pensions with
no minimum service requirements; vested benefits after ten years of service, survivor's benefits for service
connected death; and certain lump sum death benefits. For Schedule A members who are not grandfathered,
i.e., members who had at least 10 years of creditable service at June 30, 2005 but who were not eligible to
retire on September 30, 2009, benefits are based on Schedule A for services thraugh September 30, 2009
and on Schedule B for services after September 30, 2009. Maximum benefit is 80% of FAC,

Schedule B Benefits: Schedule B benefits are provided to members who have less than 10 years of
contributory service on or before July 1, 2005. For Schedule B members, the plan provides unreduced
benefits of 1.6% of earnings for each of the first ten years of service; 1.8% for each of the next ten years;
2.0% per year for years 21 through 25 inclusive; 2.25% per year for years 26 through 30 inclusive; 2.5% per
year for years 31 through 37 inclusive and 2.25% for the 38" year. Only single life, and joint and survivor
options are available. The maximum benefit is 75% of his or her average highest three years of compensation
after 38 years of service. Such benefits are available to members at least age 55 with 10 years of service, or
after 28 years of service and age 59. Actuarially reduced retirement is available at age 55 and 20 years of
service, the benefit is reduced actuarially for each month that the age of the member is less than sixty-five
years. On the month following the third anniversary date of the retirement, and on the month following the
anniversary date of each succeeding vear, a cost of living increase of 3% (compounded annually) or the
percentage of increase in the Consumer Price index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U) as published by the
United States Department of Labor Statistics, determined as of September 30 of the prior calendar vear,
whichever is less is provided for Schedule B members.

(CONTINUED)
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11.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
{d) Teacher's Pension Plan (Continued)
Pian Description {Continued)

The ERS plan also provides a survivor benefit to public schoo! teachers via a “Teachers Survivor
Benefits Fund” in lieu of Social Security. The details of the survivor death benefits and other death benefits
are provided in the financial section of the Annual Financial Report of the Emplioyees’ Retirement System of
Rhode Island for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009 which can be found at WWwW.arsri.org.

Funding Policy

Rhode Island general laws set the contribution rates for participating plan employees at 9.5% of
salary. Annual contributions by both employers and the State on behalf of those employees are determined by
actuaries and assessed as percentage of participants’ payroll.  The School Department was required to
contribute 11.25%, 11.89%, and 13.04% for all full-time employees for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The required contributions include (a) normal costs; (b) payments to amortize the unfunded
frozen actuarial accrued liability as of June 30, 199% over 30 years; and {c} interest on the unfunded frozen
actuarial liability. Normal cost is determined using the entry age normal cost method with frozen initial ligbility.
A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used fo determine the standardized measure of the pension
benefit obligation and these assumptions are summarized below:

Mortality — 1994 Group Annuity Mortality Table

Investment return — 8.25 percent, compounded annually.

Salary increase - Salaries will increase at a rate of 4.5% to 13.25%, compounded annually,
Retirement age — 75% of Schedule B members who reach the age of 59 with 29 years of service
before age 65 are assumed to retire when first eligible. 75% of other members are expected to
retire when first eligible, at age 65 with 10 years of service. Because of enactment of Article 7 in
2009, the retirement assumption was modified for members not eligible for retirement by October
1, 2009. Members who would have been assumed to retire prior to age 62 under the rules in
effect before the enactment of Article 7 are assumed to retire when first eligible for an unreduced
benefit under Article 7.

E. Cost of living adjustments ~ Schedule A Members: 3.0% compounded annually,

Schedule B Members: 2 5%.

Com>»

As prescribed by Rhode Island general law, the State pays the entire portion of the annual required
contribution attributable to the costs of contributions deferred by the State in prior years plus 40% of
contributions assessed to employers on payroli not reimbursable through Federal programs. This resulted in
contribution rates paid by the State on behalf of the School Department of 7.75% of non-federaily
reimbursable payrolls totaling $826,518 for the year ended June 30, 2010.

The amounts required and contributed to the plan are as follows:

Years Ending June 30,

2070 i 51,213,075
2009 $1,224,753
2008 e $1.204 6897

{CONTINUED)
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12.

13.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
{c) Teacher's Pension Plan (Continued)
Funding Policy (Continued)

in accordance with GASB 27, “Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers,”
the School District has determined that there is and has been no net pension obligation or assets related to
the Plan.

Trend information showing the System’s progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits
when due is presented in the State of Rhode Island's Empioyee Retirement System's June 30, 2009 annual
financial report, which may be obtained from the administrative offices of the State of Rhode lsiand Retirement
Board, 40 Fountain Street, Providence, Rhode Isiand. This report is the most recent report available from the
State, who administers the Plan. The report can also be found at www.ersr,org.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES/COMMITMENTS

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives are required and, consequently, certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate,
and result in reimbursement fo the grantor agencies. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies could not be determined at this time. Town officials believe that such
disaliowances, if any, would not be material.

The government is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the government's attorneys, the resolution of these matters will not
have a materially adverse effect on the financial condition of the govermnment.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS
Plan Description

The "Town of North Smithfield Retiree Welfare Plan” is a single-employer defined benefit
postretirement health and dental insurance plan. The Town provides lifetime health care and dental insurance
benefits to eligible empioyees. This plan is offered to ail certified teachers, Town employees and public safety
empioyees who meet certain age and service requirements. Benefits were paid to forty employees during
2010. These benefits were funded on a pay as you go basis. For 2010, contributions were approximately
$206,675 for the Town and $120,817 for the School Department for a total of $327,482.

These benefits are provided as part of the employee’s contract.

(CONTINUED)
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POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
Funding Policy

The Town’s funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions to the plans at
rates that, increase gradually over time so that sufficient assets will be available to pay benefits when due. For
retired school teachers, covered participants must contribute $562 per year for individual coverage and $1,400
per year for family coverage. For retired town employees hired after July 1, 2005, covered participants must
pay 5% of the gross premiums for Medical and Dental costs, subject to an annual maximum of $300 for single
coverage and 3750 for family coverage. Those town employees hired before July 1, 2005 shall not be required
to pay for coverage in retirement if they retire with at least 20 years of service. Retired public safety
employees shall pay the co-share in effect as of the date of their retirement and this amount shall not increase
during their retirement. Those public safety empioyees who retired prior to July 1, 2007 shall not be required
to pay for coverage in retirement. The annual OPEB cost was determined as part of the July 1, 2009 actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.00%
(previously 4.5%) investment rate of return, inflation adjustment of 3.5% per year, and compensation
increases of 4.5% per year. Healthcare trend rates range from 11% for medical and 8.5% for rental during
fiscal year 2008 to 5% for medical and dental for 2015. The unfunded actuarial accrued kability was
determined using the level dollar thirty year open amortization basis. The remaining amortization period was
27 years at June 30, 2010.

The Town adopted GASB 45 prospectively during fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The available
trend information is presented below.

Three-Year Trend Information

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year QOPEB of OPEB Cost OPEB
Ending Cost Contributed Obligaticn
6/30/2010 $572,000 57.3% $722,770
B/30/2009 $562,414 57.5% $478.262
6/30/2008 3562 414 57.5% $239,131

The Town's annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Annual required contrioution ... $580,468
Interest on net OPEB obligation................ccocoovooeoo 19,130
Adjustment to annual required contribution ... {27.598)
Annual OPEB cost (€XPeNSE) ..o 572,000
Contributions Made...........c...oi {327,492)
Increase in net OPEB obligation ... 244 508
Net OPEB obligation-beginning of year ... 478,262
Net OPEB obligation-end of year............... ... $722.770

{(CONTINUED)
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14.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (Continued)
Schedule of Funding Progress
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions
about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded
status of the plan and the annual required contribution of the empioyer are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future, .The
schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial vaiue of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to
the actuarial accrued liabiity for benefits.
Schedule of Funding Progress (Continued)
UAAL as a

Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded AVA as a Percent of

Value of Accrued AAL Percent Covered

Assets Liabifity (LUAAL) of AAL Covered Payroll
Actuarial (AVA) (AAL) (2)-{1) (DI(2) Payroll {35

Valuation Date (4} 3] 3 (G s} (8}

07/01/08 N/A $5,798,707 $5,796,707 N/A $15,979,607 36.3%
RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town of North Smithfield is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to,
and destruction of assets; errors or omissions: injuries to employees; and natural disasters. As a result, the
Town participates in a non-profit, public entity risk pool (Rhode Island Inter-local Risk Management Trust, Inc.)
which provides coverage for property/liability claims and workers' compensation claims. Upon joining the
Trust, the Town signed a participation agreement which outlines the rights and responsibilities of both the
Trust and the Town. The agreement states that for premiums paid by the Town, the Trust will assume
financial responsibility for the Town’s losses up to the maximum amount of insurance purchased, minus the
Town's deductible amounts. The Trust provides this insurance coverage through a pooled, self-insurance
mechanism which includes reinsurance purchased by the Trust to protect against large, catastrophic claims
above the losses the Trust refains internally for payment from the pooied contributions of its Members. Under
the participation agreement, the Town is insured for general liability for a maximum of $5,000,000 per
occurrence,

(CONCLUDED)
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Town of North Smithfield

Schedule of funding progress
June 30, 2010

SCHEDULE E-1

Scheduie of funding progress for the Municipal Employeees’ Retirement System

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

6/30/2007
6/30/2008
6/30/2009

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(a)

$12,839,829
$13,716,901
$13,501,632

Actuarial
Accrued
Liabitity (AAL}
{b)

$10,532,213
$10,980,041
$11,489,027

Unfunded
AAL {LJAAL}Y
{a-b}

$2,307,615
$2,736,861
$2,012,605

Funded
Ratio
ab

121.91%
124 93%
117.52%

Covered
Payroif

()

$2,919,440
$2,983,170
$2,856,531

Schedule of funding progress for the Municipal Employeees' Retirement System (Police)

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

6/30/2007
6/30/2008
6/30/2009

Schedule of funding progress for the OPEB liability

Actuarial
Valuation
Date

7112007
7/1/2009

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

{a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)
(b}

Unfundead
AAL (UAAL)
{a-b)

$ 7064639 § 7348461 (3283,.821)
$ 7833344 $ 7,993,420 ($160,076)
$ 7928277 $ 8,661,456 ($733,179)

Actuarial
Value of
Assels

(a)

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability (AAL)
[{s3}

5,793,469
5,796,707

Unfunded
AAL {UAAL)

(a-h)

5,793,469
5,786,707

Funded
Ratio
a'b

96.14%
98.00%
91.54%

Funded
Ratio

(a/b}

Covered
Payroll

{c}

1,191,456
1,170,908
1,164,239

€3 €7 &

Covered
Payroli

€

12,367.086
15,979,607

AAl as a
percentage
Of Covered
Payroif

{{a-b)c)

79.04%
891.74%
70.46%

AAL (UAAL) as a
percentage

Of Caversd
Payroll

{{a-b)/c)

-23.82%
-13.67%
-83.52%

AAL (UAALYas a
percentage

Of Covered
Payroll

{{a-bYc)

46.8%
36.3%
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SCHEDULE E-2
TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL .- BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2610

Revenues:
Property laxes
Motor vehicle excise in fieu of tax

Intergovernmental and grant revenue

Town clerk licenses and fees
Other departimental fines and fees
Interest on investiments
Other revenue
Utifization of surpius

Total revenues

General Government
Town counci!
Administrator's office
Probatg
Town solicitor
Board of canvassers
Town clerk's office
Zordng board
Personnel Board
Juvenite Heardng Board
Regional industriai development
Congervation commission
Housing Authosity
Town halt
Plant oparations
Planning division
Printing and advertising
Contingency fund
Scouters Hall
North Smithfield Public Library
Historie District commission
Public Safety Commission
Budget Committee
Total general government

Annuaily Budgeted Special Revenue Fund

General Fund School Department
Actual on Variance Actual on
Criginal Finat Budgetary Positive Budgetary
Budget Budget Basis {Negative) Budget Basis Variance
$ 25,481,569 $ 25,481,569 25,278,591 $ {202.978)
1,985,700 1,995,760 1,882,872 (112,828}
1,497 871 1,497,871 1,504,771 6,800 § 4085869 $ 38318631 $ (154,059)
282,370 282,370 283,025 655
328,659 326,659 315,658 (11.001)
10,000 10,000 4,369 {5,631)
393,27¢ 393,279 373,235 {20,035} 120,000 64,340 (55,660)
29,887,439 28,887,429 29,642,521 {344,918) 4,205 680 3,995,971 {209,719)
14,330 14,365 14,364 i
148,430 148,430 146,365 2,065
7,800 7.90C 7.698 204
208,850 208,650 197,564 14,086
1,420 1,530 1,529 1
166,550 176,550 170,637 i3
8,930 9,930 5,703 4,227
1 1 - 1
3,450 3,450 1,544 1,906
3,000 3,000 - 3,000
4,750 4,750 4,029 72%
1 1 - 1
10,000 10,00¢ 5,891 G
15,000 15,000 12,206 2,794
140,096 140,690 778 22,312
14,500 14,500 10,668 3832
287,040 171,428 163,504 7.924
4,200 4,200 3,279 921
342,100 342,100 338,492 3,608
1 1 - 1
1 1 - 1
i 1 - 1
1,381,845 1,269 878 1,205,148 64,728 - - -
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD

GENERAL FUND

FINANGING USES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULE E.2

General Fund

Annually Budgeted Special Revenue Fund

School Department

Actual on Variance Actual on
Criginal Final Budgetary Positive Budgetary
Budget Budget Basis {Negative) Budget Basis Varlance

Financial administration

Finance office 224,800 224,900 220,189 4,711

Tax aszessor 143,744 143,744 111,315 32,429

Tax collection 109,710 109,710 107,370 2,340

Board of review 1 1 - 1

insurance 250,000 250,000 170,626 78,374

Audits and compuier service 88,800 91,200 83,182 8,008

Total financial administration 817,255 819,555 692,692 126,863 - -
Public Works
Highway department 741,710 741,710 697,197 44,513
Parks and recreation 131,020 131,020 127,543 3,477
Tree warden 3.820 3,820 3312 508
Street lights 110,060 191,000 191,019 {19}
Rubbish disposal 664,800 514,800 612,768 2,032
Sealer of weights and measures 1 1 - 1

Total public works 1,661,351 1,682,351 1,631,839 50,512 - -
Public Safety:
Police Department 2,276,398 2,353,748 2,353,960 (212)
North Smithfield firefrescue service 2,448,760 2,449,760 2,447 489 2,271
Hydrant rental 45,000 45,000 45,000 -
Anigeral control 69,650 72,300 72,282 18
Civit defense 5,140 5,140 4,273 867
inspection division 152,390 152,390 142,618 9,772

Total public safety 4 598 338 5,078 338 5,065 832 12718 - -
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SCHEDULE E-2
TOWN OF NORTH SMITHFIELD

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND OTHER

FINANCING USES- BUDGET AND ACTUAL - BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

Annuaily Budgeled Special Revenye Fund

General Fund Schoot Department
Actual on Variance Actual on
Originat Final Budgetary Positive Budgetary
Budget Budget Basis (Negative) Budget Basis Variance
Debt Service 3,845,730 3,864,197 3.902,753 {38,556)
Fixed charges
Madical, retirement and other empioyee benefits 361,570 341,570 282,740 58,830
Gramts and contributions 48,150 46,150 46,150
Transfers to other funds
Town contribution to school 18,885,400 16,885,400 16,885,400 16,885,400 16,885,400
Total expenditures 29,987,439 29,987,439 29,712,245 275,084 21,091,080 20,932,777 158,313
Other financing uses 178,870 178,870
Excess {deficiency) of revenues and
other sources over expenditures
and other uses $ - 3 - (89.824) $ (69,824) $ ~ 127,564 $ 127 564
Adjusiments required under generally
accepted accounting principles
Property tax ravenue - sixty day rule 308,240
Prior years property tax revenue- sixty day rule (222,634)
Change in encumbrances 1,866

Utilization of prior year surplus

$ 16,782 3 129,430
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MITHEIELD
Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

Govemnor's Substance Substance

School Justice Abuse Abuse Park and Miscellaneous
Restricted School Commission Ponations Prevention Recreation Revenue
Fund Rengvations Fund Fund Council Fund Fund Fund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 764 % 53 % 13,330 % 4229 § 4,174 § 302
Other receivables % 79,595 12,211
Due from federal and state governments 576,312 12,480
Due from other funds 79,178 6,310 3,895
TOTAL ASSETS $ 735085 § 764 $ 53 § 19,640 § 8,124 § 4174 § 24993
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 84,079
Accrued expenses 4,960
Bue to federal and state governments
Due to other funds 583,465 26,698 3,895 10,228 22,968
Deferred revenue 694 5,146 8,124
TOTAL LIABILITIES 672,504 - 27,392 9,041 8,124 10,228 22,968
FUND BALANCE
Capital Projects 764
Special Revenue 62,581 {27.,339) 10,599 {6.054) 2,025
Permanent Trusts
TOTAL FUND BALANCE 5 62,581 § 764 % {27,339) 3 10,599 § - 5 (6,054) § 2,025
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Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

Due from federal and state governments

Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Due to federal and state governments

Due to other funds
Beferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCE
Capital Projects
Special Revenue

Permanent Trusts

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

Project Business Police Miscelfaneous Dabt
DARE. Revoiving CDBG Forfeiture Police/Fire EMS Reserve
Fund Loan Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund Fund
$ 1,322 & 54,021 §$ 35573 § 211 % 21820 § 245309

21,500
- 20 % 8,835
$ 1,322 & 54021 § 57073 § 231 % 8835 § 21,820 § 245,309
2,885
34,071
- - 34,071 - - - 2,885
1,322 54,021 23,002 231 8.835 21,820 242 424
5 1,322 % 54021 § 23002 $ 231§ 8,835 § 21,820 § 242424
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Combining Balance Sheet
Non-Major Governmental Funds
June 30, 2010

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

Other receivables

Due from federal and state governments
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounis payable

Accrued expenses

Due to federal and state governments

Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES
FUND BALANCE
Capital Projects
Special Revenue

Permanent Trusts

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

Michae! F. J. Haroid

Record Lovett Monroe Jr.
Retention Schotarship Scholarship GRAND
Fund Account Account TOTALS
$ 52 § 1,412 § 382,272
91,806
610,202
68,993 167,231
68,993 § 52 % 1,112  $§ 1,251,601
84,079
4,960
650,139
48,035
- - - 787,213
764
393,467
68,993 52 1,112 70,157
68,993 & 52 % 1,112 § 464,388
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N OF N THEIELD F-2

Combining Statment of Revenues other Financing Sources, Expenditures and other Financing Uses and Changes in Fund Balance
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Governor's Substance Substance
Schog! Justice Abuse Abuse Park and Miscellaneous
Restricted School Commission Daonations Prevention Recreation Revenue
Fund Renovations Fund Fund Council Fund Fund Fund
REVENUES:
Interest and investment income $ 1 3% 3 5 g 3 7 3 4 % 3
Intergovernmental $ 1,411,704 4,205 19,273
Other 133,462 14,890 44,136 5,840
TOTAL REVENUES 1,545,166 1 4,208 14,898 19,280 44,140 5,848
EXPENDITURES:
Public services 36,995 10,608 19,280 45911
Education 1,343,940
Capital outlays 204,702
Other 3,849
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,548,842 - 35,895 10,658 19,280 45,911 3.849
Excess of revenue over{under) expenditures
before transfers {3,476) 1 {31,697} 4,260 {1,771} 1,899
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out (218,598)
Notes proceeds
Proceeds from capital lease
Net other financing sources {uses) (218,598} - - - - - -
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses {222,074) 1 {31,607} 4,200 {1,771} 1,899
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 284 6565 783 4,358 §,309 {4,283) 26
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 62,581 & 764 % (27,339) § 10,500 § - § (6,054) % 2,025
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Combining Statment of Revenues other Financing Sources, Expenditures and other Financing Uses and Changes in Fund Balance

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Praject Business Police Miscellaneous Debt Record
2.ARE. Revolving CDBG Forfeiture Police/Fire EMS Reserve Retention
Fund Loan Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund Fund Fund

REVENUES:
interest and investment income 3 1§ (222} 3% 27 $ 321 114
intergovernmentat 8,178
Other 1,750 330,505 $ 25,237
TOTAL REVENUES 1,751 {222} 8,205 - - 330,826 114 26,237
EXPENDITURES:!
Fublic services 1,868 8,662
Education 240
Capital outlays 207,852
Gther 8,205 47,008 22,498
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,868 - 8,205 - - 255,280 8,602 22,498
Excess of revenue overfunder) expenditures
before transfers (117) (222) 75,636 (8,488) 2,739
Gther financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 101,000
Transfers out {291,000}
Notes proceads
Proceeds from capital lease
Net ather financing sources {uses) - - - - - (291,000} 101.000 -
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses {117) (222) (215,464) 92,512 2,739
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,439 54,243 23002 231 8,835 237,284 149,912 68,254
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 1,322 § 54021 % 23,002 % 231 3 8,836 % 21,820 & 242424 % 68,093
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&omﬁining Statment of Revenues other Financing Sources, Expenditures and other Financing Uses and Changes in Fund Balance
Non-Major Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30. 2010

Michas! F. J. Harold
Lovett Monroe Jr.
Scholarship Scholarship GRAND
Account Account TOTALS
REVENUES:
interest and investment income 3 4 5 6 3 282
intergovernmental 1,443,450
Other 2,987 558,807
TOTAL REVENUES 2,991 3] 2,002,539
EXPENDITURES:
Public services 122,354
Education 1,344,180
Capital outlays 412,654
Other 6,027 5,000 92,677
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,027 5,000 1,871,865
Excess of revenue over{under) expenditures
before transfers (3,036) {4,594) 30.674
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 101.000
Transfers out (509,508)
Notes proceads
Proceeds from capital lease -
Net other financing sources {uses) - - {408,598}
Excess of revenues and other sources over
{under) expenditures and other uses (3,038) (4,994) (377,924)
FUND BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR 3,088 6,106 842,312
FUND BALANCE, END OF YEAR $ 52 % 1,112 % 464,388
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Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2010

Harkness Road Escrow

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Subdivision Bond Account

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITY
Depuosits Held in Custody for Others

Police Uniforms

ASSET

Cash and cash equivalents
LIABILITY

Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Junior/Senior High School Fund

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Middle School Fund

ASSET
Cash and cash sguivalents

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
6,642 $ 6,642 -
6,642 % 5,642 -
15,390 $ 12 15,402
15,390 3 12 15,402
445 - 445
445 $ - 445
164,176 $ 3019022 $ 296,533 169,565
13,530 12,511 13,538 12,511
177,715 $ 314,433 § 310,072 182,076
177,715 3 314,433 3 310,072 182,076
- $ 78198 $ 49339 28,857
- § 78196 $ 49,339 28,857
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Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2010

Halliwell School Fund

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Athletic Account

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITY
Deposits Held in Custody for Others

Elementary School Fund

ASSET
Cash and cash equivalents

LIABILITY
Deposits Heald in Custody for Others

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
ASSET
Cash
Other receivables
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITY
Ceposits Held in Custody for Others
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Deductions Balance
& 7,647 33,524 5 28,058 12,213
$ 7,647 33,624 5 28,958 12,213
$ 3,629 46,693 $ 37.887 12,455
$ 3,629 46,693 $ 37,867 12,455
$ 14,012 31,698 $ 42,080 3,630
$ 14,012 31,608 $ 42080 3,630
$ 211,841 492,045 $ 461,419 242,567
13,539 12,511 13,539 12,511
$ 225,480 504,556 $ 474,958 255,078
5 225,480 504,556 § 474958 255,078
$ 225,480 504,556 $ 474958 255,078
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAXES RECEIVABLE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2010

SCHEDULEH -1

"
o]
1Y)
=

|

2009
2008
2007
2006
2006
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998

Total
Less: Aliowance for

Uncollectible accounts
Net

Balance
Uncollected

July 1, 2009

461,000
102,397
33,351
52,726
39,503
39,587
28,928
16,211
16,192
20,530
45,461

855,886

(100,000)

3 755,886

2009 Abatements & Amount to be Current Year Balance
Assessment Additions Adjusiments Collected Coliections June 30, 2010
$25,090,079 $ 181,991 $ 87,778 $ 25,184,292 $ 24,562.089 622,203

406 {75,344) 536,750 405 557 131,193

238 1,146 101,490 18,325 83,165

(11,658) 45,005 4,593 40,416

13,479 349,247 1,463 37,784

4,684 34,819 448 34,371

21 38,566 533 38,033

(25) 28,953 2,198 26,755

882 15,229 415 14,814

1,601 14,591 14,591

2,083 18,447 18,447

24,272 21,188 21,189

$25000,079 $ 182,636 $ 49 019 $ 26,079,582 3 24995621 1,083,981
{100.000)

Schedule of property valuation assessed as of December 31, 2008:

Real estate

Tangibles

Motor vehicles

Less: exemptions
State phase out

$ 1,508,856,739
54,318,000
97,191,319
(31,428,641)
(48,591,337)

$ 1,580,348,080

5 983,961
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